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VISION AND MISSION

VISION

Is to achieve and then remain as the most progressive and profitable
Company offering a wide range of quality products and service provider

in terms of industry standards and stakeholders interest.

MISSION

The Company shall achieve its mission through a continuous process of

having sourced, developed, implemented and managed the best leading

edge technology, industry best practice, human resource and innovative
of superior products, performance and service quality that fully meet
the needs of our customers, better returns to our stakeholders and a

better quality of life to the employees.




<% International Knitwear Limited

CODE OF CONDUCT

CODE OF CONDUCT

International Knitwear Limited being engaged in the Local and export of garments
and providing dyeing facilities is:

- Committed to provide quality products and services to all its local and
international customers.

- Further committed to comply with all applicable Regulatory and
Customers’ requirements, thereby ensuring achievement of customers’
continuous satisfaction.

- An equal opportunity employer which does not differentiate between its
employees on the basis of cast, creed, sex or religious affiliations.

- Always willing, through a liberal training policy, to educate, train and
groom its employees to enhance their professionalism, commitment and
personal growth leading to achievement of greater goals.

Committed to the well-being of its employees by adopting generous welfare
policies and practices.

In return International Knitwear Limited expects from its employees that:

- As representatives of the Company they must at all times behave
appropriately and strictly follow all rules and regulations of the Company.

- They must devote their time, attention, abilities and energy exclusively
for the performance of their duties and must not engage themselves in
any other occupation, business or employment whatsoever without prior
written consent of the Company.

- They must not disclose any confidential information pertaining to the
business of the Company to any person inside or outside the company.

- They must protect all records, reports and other published or
unpublished documents of the Company and promptly hand over all
these to the Company upon leaving, for whatever reason, the
employment of the Company. They must not also remove any or all of the
said records, reports and documents from the premises of the Company
without appropriate authorization.
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Eight (28th) Annual General Meeting of International
Knitwear Limited will be held on Saturday, October 27, 2018 at 18:00 hours at F-2A/L S.L.T.E
Karachito transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2017.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2018, together with the Directors’ and
Auditors’ reports thereon.

3. To declare and approve final cash dividend @ 5% i.e.PKR 0.50 per share for the
year ended June 30, 2018, as recommended by the Board of Directors.

4. To appoint auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration for the year
ending June 30, 2019. The present auditors M/s RSM
Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman, Chartered Accountants, retire and being
eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

5. To elect seven (7) Directors of the Company as fixed by the Board pursuant to
the provisions of Section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017 for a term of three (3)
years commencing immediately after the conclusion of the meeting. The names
of retiring Directors are as follows:

1. Mr.Waseem Shafi 5. Mr.Muhammad Sajid Hussain
2. Mr.Naeem Shafi 6. Mr.Arshad Ahmed

3. Mr.Javed Khan 7. Mr.JavedAkhter Malik

4. Mr.Muhammad Shafi

6. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

G

Javed Khan
Company Secretary

Karachi: October 06, 2018
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NOTES:

1. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Nomination / Notice of intention to offer himself/herself for election as a director in terms
of Section 159(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, shall be filed, with the Company at the
Registered Office,F-2A/L S.I.T.E, Karachi, by a member, not later than fourteen (14) days
before the date of the above said meeting, along with:

e Consent to act as director on Form-28 duly completed and signed by the candidate as
required under section 167(1) of the Companies Act, 2017.

e Candidates detailed profile along with his/her office address as required under SECP’s
SRO 634(1)/2014 dated July 10, 2014.

e Signed declaration to the effect that the candidate is aware of the duties and powers of
directors under the Companies Act, 2017, Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company, Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 and other relevant laws and
regulations.

e Signed declaration to the effect that the candidate is compliant with the requirements
and eligibility criteria as set out in the Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 to be appointed as a Director/Independent
Director of the listed Company.

e Copy of valid CNIC/Passport and NTN.

Following additional documents are to be submitted by the candidate(s) intending to

contest election of directors as an independent director:

e Declaration under Regulation 6(2) of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017 that the candidate qualifies the criteria of independence
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

e Undertaking on non-judicial stamp paper that the candidate meets the requirements of
Regulation 4(1) of the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent Directors)
Regulations, 2018.

2. CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOK

The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will
be accepted for registration from October 20, 2018 to October 27, 2018 (both days
inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar:

M/s Central D itory C 1y of Paki Limited

Share Registrar Department

CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S,

Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.

Telephone (Toll Free) 0800-23275 / Fax: (92-21) 34326053

Email: info@cdcpak.com / Website: www.cdcpakistan.com
at the close of business on October 19, 2018 will be treated in time for the purpose of
determination of entitlement to the transferees.




<% International Knitwear Limited

| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

3. FOR APPOINTING PROXIES
A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her. A proxy need not be a
member.
Proxy in order to be effective must be duly signed, witnessed, stamped and deposited at
the office of the Share Registrar not less than 48 hours before the meeting.
The shareholder/proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or passport at the time of the
meeting.
CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid
down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.
A. FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING:
In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are
in group account, and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall
authenticate his identity by showing his original

e Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of
attending the Meeting.

* In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided
earlier) at the time of the Meeting.

B. FOR APPOINTING PROXIES:

e In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person
whose securities are in group account, and their registration details are uploaded as
per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirements

e The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and
CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

e Attested copies of CNIC or the passport, of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall
be furnished with the proxy form.

e The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the
Meeting.

e In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney
with specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier)
along with proxy form to the Company.

4. VIDEO-LINK FACILITY
At least seven days prior to the date of the meeting, on the demand of members residing in
a city who hold at least ten percent of the total paid up capital of the Company, the facility
of video-link will be provided to such members in that city enabling them to participate in
the annual general meeting through video-link facility.
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5. FORM OF PROXY
Form of proxy is annexed at the end of annual report as well as available at Company’s
website i.e., www.internationalknitwear.com

6. CHANGE OF ADDRESS
Members are requested to promptly notify to the Company’s Share Registrar of any
change in their addresses.

7. COMPUTERIZED NATIONAL IDENTITY CARD NUMBER /NATIONAL TAX NUMBER
In compliance with regulatory directives issued from time to time, members who have not
yet provided their Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) Numbers and/or National
Tax Numbers (NTN), as the case may be, are requested to kindly provide copies of their
valid CNIC and/or NTN certificates at the earliest as follows:

e The shareholders who hold Company’s shares in physical form are requested to
submit the above information to the Share Registrar at the address mentioned
above.

e Shareholders maintaining their shareholdings under Central Depository System
(CDS) are advised to submit the above information directly to relevant
Participant/CDC Investor Account Service.

8. PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND ELECTRONICALLY — COMPULSORY
Members of the Company are hereby requested to comply with the provisions of Section
242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and provide the particulars of their bank accounts through
E-Dividend Form annexed at the end of annual report as well as available at Company’s
website i.e., www.internationalknitwear.com as dividends payable in cash shall only be paid through
electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders
instead of through issuance of Dividend Warrants. In the absence of bank account details
or in case of incomplete details, the Company will be constrained to withhold the payment
of cash dividend of those shareholders who have not provided the same.

9. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FOR FILER AND NON-FILER AT REVISED RATES

The rates of deduction of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

from dividend payment are as follows:

1. Rate of tax deduction for filers of income tax returns 15%

2. Rate of tax deduction for non-filers of income tax returns 20%

In case of Joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer
and tax will be deducted on the basis of shareholding of each joint holder as may be
notified by the shareholder, in writing as follows, to our Share Registrar, or if not so
notified, each joint holder shall be assumed to have an equal number of shares.

Principal shareholder Joint Shareholder
Company | Folio/CDS
Name Account | Total
No. Shares | Name &Shareholding Name 8Shareholding
CNIC No. Proportion CNICNo.  Proportion
{no. of shares) (no. of shares)




<% International Knitwear Limited

| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The CNIC/NTN number is now mandatory and is required for checking the tax status as per
the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) issued and updated by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR)
from time to time.

10. EXEMPTION FROM DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX/ZAKAT
Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at
a reduced rate are requested to submit a valid tax exemption certificate or necessary
documentary evidence as the case may be. Members desiring non-deduction of zakat are
also requested to submit a valid declaration for non-deduction of zakat.

11. UNCLAIMED SHARES / DIVIDEND
Members of the Company are informed that in compliance with the provisions of Section
244 of the Companies Act, 2017, shares / dividend which remain unclaimed or
unpaid for a period of three years from the date it is due and payable will be vested with
the Federal Government after lapse of the time period as prescribed by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, if no claim is made by respective members. Accordingly,
all those members whose shares / dividend remain unclaimed or unpaid for the mentioned
period are once again requested to lodge their claims as the Company has already
dispatched notices in this respect to all such shareholders at their last known addresses,
where available with the Company.

12. AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY’S WEWBSITE
The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018 have
been placed at the Company’s website www.internationalknitwear.com.

13. TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT ELECTRONICALLY
The SECP vide SRO 787 (1)/2014 dated September 08, 2014 has provided an option for
shareholders to receive audited financial statements along with notice of annual general
meeting electronically through email. Accordingly, members who are interested in
receiving the annual reports and notice of annual general meeting electronically in future
are requested to send their email addresses on the consent form placed on the Company’s
website www.internationalknitwear.com, to the Company’s Share Registrar. The Company shall,
however additionally provide hard copies of the annual report to such members, on request,
free of cost.

14. VOTING THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT
In accordance with Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, members may cast their
votes through postal ballot. If required, ballot papers will be published in newspapers and
requisite information will be made available as per the procedures and timelines provided
under the said regulations.
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Assalam o Alaikum

The Board of Directors of International Knitwear Limited takes pleasure in presenting this report together
with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Financial performance

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Net sales 393,230,773 169,496,272
Gross profit /(loss) 58,810,769 (3,667,670)
Other income (16,506,278) 25,058,664
Profit/(loss) after taxation 13,404,982 2,152,031
Net earnings per share 1.39 0.25

Business overview
Financial highlights of the year ended June 30, 2018 are summarized below:

The figures calculated above reveal that during the year the Company posted net sales amounting to
Rs. 393.23 million as compared to Rs. 169.49 million and operating profit for the year Rs. 41.81 million as
compared to loss of Rs. 17.32 million for the corresponding period last year.

Sales recorded an increase of Rs.223.74 million in the current year as compared to sales in the previous
year ended 30, June 2017. Gross profit of the Company reported Rs.58.81 million in the current year as
compared to gross loss of Rs.3.67 million of the last year.

International Knitwear has gradually demonstrated strength, with solid growth in top line over the years.
The Company has made this possible through the contribution of all our business segments applying the
best-selling proficiency together with technical and commercial skills to create value for customers.

The reporting year is comparatively better year due to financial performance of the Company. Despite of
the global economic slackness profit after tax of the Company is Rs.13.40 million (after absorbing
unrealized loss of Rs. 22.30 million from other Income segment in investments of stocks)

Export Sales
Inspite of unprecedented prices in the international market we managed in increasing our Export sales to

Rs.210.52 million against Rs.123.39 million showing an increase of Rs.70.61 million or 57.22% over last
year. This increase in sales reflects on the quality and acceptably of finished goods by our customer.

10
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Local sales
The continued focus on local sales and providing quality products to the renowned branded stores of
Pakistan, the Company has achieved local sales of Rs.182.71 million against Rs.46.09 million when

compared with last year, showing an increase of Rs.136.62 million or 296.42% over corresponding
period.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share after taxation is Rs. 1.39 as compared to Rs. 0.25 in the last year yielding 456%
improved earnings for the shareholders.

Other Income

In other income the company realized and unrealized loss of Rs. 22.30 million against gain of Rs.17.77
million in the corresponding period last year. Dividend income during the year was Rs. 1.45 million
against Rs. 2.48 million against the corresponding period last year.

Capital Expenditure

The Company during the year made capital investment of Rs.5.85 million for expanding manufacturing
capacity, enhancing productivity and improving plant efficiency.

Dividend

The Board of Directors is pleased to announce a final cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2018 at
5% i.e. Re.0.50 per share (2017 Rs. Nil) in its meeting held on September 28, 2018.

Communication

The Company focuses on the importance of the communication with the shareholders. The annual, half
yearly and quarterly reports are distributed to them within the time specified in the Companies Act 2017.
The activities of the Company are updated on its website at www.internationalknitwear.com in a
designated section for investors containing relevant information on timely basis.

Material Changes

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of the report.

Health, Safety and Environment

We strongly believe in maintaining the highest standards in health, safety and environment (HSE) to
ensure the well-being of the people who work with us as well as of the communities where we operate.

11
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y of key op ing and fi

ial data of six years at a glance

Below is a summary of key operating and financial results for six years and includes the financial results

for the year under review:

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
000’
ASSETS EMPLOYED
Property, plant and equipment 25,728 23,704 26,850 20,095 23,272 35,399
Intangible assets - - - - - "
Long-term investments 23,011 35,183 75,600 42,677 1,054 560
Long-term deposits 1,500 1,500 2,006 1,500 1,608 1,608
Net current assets 26,228 74,741 17,630 26,631 11,689 (3,986)
Total assets employed 76,467 135,128 122,086 90,904 37,623 33,580
FINANCED BY
Issued, subscribed and paid
3 96,750 96,750 64,500 64,500 32,250 32,250
up capital
Reserve and un-appropriated
17,764 4,359 17,864 14,548 4,915 1,195
profit
Gain on revaluation of
: (16,506) 25,701 38,043 11,856 458 136
investments
Shareholder's equity 98,008 126,810 120,407 90,904 37,623 33,581
Long term and deferred
3 g 1,679 g & -
liabilities
Total capital employed 98,008 126,810 122,086 90,904 37,623 33,581
Turnover 393,230 169,496 182,672 184,118 145,539 105,441
Profit/(loss) before tax 17,337 3,799 11,626 11,639 4,696 -13,192
Profit/(loss) after tax 13,404 2,152 9,766 9,798 3,720 -13,948
Earning per share 1.39 0.25 1.52 2.05 1.15 (4.33)
Net income % 3.4% 1.3% 5.3% 5.3% 2.6% -13.2%
Return on capital employed 13.67% 1.7% 8.0% 10.8% 9.9% -41.5%

Dividend

Cash (%)

5%

0%

10%

10%

0%

0%

Stock (%)

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

12
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Compliance with the best practices of Corporate Governance as per clause XVI of Code of
Corporate Governance
The Board is pleased to state that the management of the Company is compliant with the best practices
of Corporate Governance. The Board acknowledges its responsibilities in respect of the corporate and
financial reporting framework and thus states that:
= The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
« The Company has maintained proper books of account.
* Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
* International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements.
= There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as
detailed in the Book Pakistan Stock Exchange.
= The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored. The process of monitoring internal controls will continue as an ongoing process with
the objective to further strengthen the controls and bring improvements in the system.
= There is no doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
* Information about taxes and levies is given in notes to the accounts.
Audit committee
The Committee comprises of three members all of them are non- executive Directors including the
Chairman of the Committee.
The terms of reference of the Committee have been determined by the Board of Directors in accordance
with guidelines provided in the Pakistan Stock Exchange Rule Book and advised to the Committee for
compliance. The Committee held four meetings during the year.

Members Name Meetings attended
Mr. Arshad Ahmed 4
Mr. Waseem Shafi 4
Mr. Javed Akhter Malik 4

The Board Audit Committee assists theh Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, primarily in
reviewing and reporting financial and non-financial information to share-holders, systems of internal
control and risk management and the audit process. It has the autonomy to call for information from
management and to consult directly with the external auditors or advisors as considered appropriate. The
Chief Financial Officer regularly attends the Board Audit Committee meetings by invitation to present the
accounts. After each meeting, the chairman of the Committee reports to the Board. The Committee met 4
times during 2017-18.
Meetings of board of directors
During the year, four meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each Director was as
under:
Name of director Meetings attendance
Mr. Naeem Shafi
Mr. Waseem Shafi
Mr. Javed Khan
Mr. Javed Akhter Malik
Mr. Muhammad Sajid Hussain
Mr. Arshad Ahmed
Mr. Muhammad Shafi
Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors and Committees of the Board
The evaluation of Board’s role of oversight and its effectiveness is continual process, which is appraised
by the Board itself. The core areas of focus are:
@ Alignment of corporate goals and objectives with the vi
@ Strategy formulation for sustainable operation;
@ Board's independence; and
@® Evaluation of Board’'s Committees performance in relation to discharging their responsibilities set
out in respective terms of reference.

FNEANSTANNENEN

n and mission of the Company;

13
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Review of CEO ‘s Performance
The performance of the CEO is formally appraised through the evaluation system which is based on
quantitative and qualitative values. It includes the performance of the business, the accomplishment of
objectives with reference to profits, organization building, succession planning and corporate success.
Directors’ Remuneration
The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However, in accordance with
the Code of Corporate Governance, it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own
remuneration. The Company does not pay remuneration to non-executive directors except fee for
attending the meeting. In order to retain the best talent, the Company's remuneration policies are
structured in line with prevailing industry trends and business practices. For information on remuneration
of Directors and CEO in 2017-18, please refer notes to the Financial Statements.
Human r and
The Board in accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance has also constituted a Human
Resource and Remuneration Committee, comprising of the following three Directors:

Meetings attendance

Mr. Muhammad Sajid Hussain 1
Mr. Muhammad Shafi 1
Mr. Javed Akhter Malik 1

The Committee meets to review and recommend all elements of the compensation, organization and
employee development policies relating to the senior executives’ remuneration and to approve all matters
relating to the remunerations to the executive director and members of the management committee. The
Committee met once during 2017-18.

Statutory auditors

The auditors RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman Chartered Accountants retire and offer themselves for
reappointment the financial year ending June 30, 2018.

Pattern of shareholding

A statement showing the pattern of shareholding in the Company and additional information as on June
30, 2018 is annexed to this report.

There were 1,282 shareholders on the record of the Company as at 30th June 2018.

Future outlook

The textile industry, one of the major contributors in the Country’s economy needs to focus on
value added products as there is potential in the international market. However this would only
be possible with the support of the Government with commitment to policy implementation,
improved energy supply and helping exporters to build competitive cost advantage.

Despite challenges faced by our Country and industry the Company has been successful in
maintaining increase in turnover when compar:d with corresponding period last year.

The management remains committed to increase the sales & performance of the Company by
utilizing its resources efficiently and investment in value addition of the existing facilities to
cope with growing demands of our products.

Hence we are looking forward to the next year with immense optimism and enthusiasm.
Acknowledgments

The Board thanks all staff members and workers for excellent performance during challenging times and
look forward to achieve further goals in future.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to record my gratitude to extremely valued shareholders, customers,
suppliers, contractors, bankers and other stakeholders for their support, trust and confidence. Thanks are
also due to all the employees for their loyalty, dedication and hard work which enabled the Company to
achieve its objectives.

For and on behalf of the Board

Karachi: September 28, 2018 Qv’\ t

NAEEM SHAFI
14 Chief Executive
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number ofdirectorsare 7 as per thefollowing:

Male: 7 (Seven)
Female: 0 (Zero)

2 The composition of board is asfollows:

Category Name

Executive Directors Mr.Naeem Shafi
Mr.Javed Khan

Non-Executive Directors Mr.Waseem Shafi

Mr.Muhammad Shafi
Mr.Arshad Ahmed
Mr.Muhammad Sajid Hussain
Independent Director Mr.Javed Akhter Malik

3, The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed
companies, including this Company.

The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the
dates on which they were approved or amended has beenmaintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations

with respect to frequency,record in gand circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

15
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

16

One Director obtained under the Directors’ training program and in addition, two of our directors

meet the criteria of exemption under clause (xi) of CCG and is accordingly exempted from
directors’ training program.

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and
Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment
and complied with relevant requirements of theRegulations.

CEOandCFOdulyendorsedthefinancialstatementsbeforeapprovalofthe Board.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Arshad Ahmed (Chairman)
Waseem Shafi

Javed Akhter Malik

HR and Remuneration Committee
Muhammad Sajid Hussain (Chairman)
Muhammad Shafi

Javed Akhter Malik

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee forcompliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as perfollowing:
a) Audit Committee: Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2018
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: One meeting during the financial year ended June 30, 2018

The Board has setup an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified,
experienced for the purpose and conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

Pakistan (ICAP), and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the

partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and

that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants

(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

17 The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and theauditorshaveconfirmedthattheyhaveobservedIFACguidelinesinthisregard.

18, We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been compliedwith except for the
following towards which reasonable progress is being made by the Company to seek compliances
by the year end of next accounting year June 30, 2019:

a) Aformal and effective mechanism is not in place for an annual evaluation of board's own
performance, member's of board and of its committees.

b) The level of materiality has not been defined, keeping in view the specific circumstances
of the Company and the recommendations of any technical or executive sub-committee
of the board that may be set up for the purpose.

c) Chairman of Audit Committee is not an independent director

d) Chairman of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee is not an independent
director

e) Norecord isin place for particulars of the significant policies.

f) The functions of the CFO and company secretary are handled by same persons.

NAEEM SHAFI
Karachi: September 28, 2018 Chief Executive
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REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of International Knitwear Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2018 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents
repared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such
internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements
of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by
the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out
procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties
and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the
Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of
Compliance:
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REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

S#

Paragraph
reference

Description

18 (a)

A formal and effective mechanism is not in place for an annual
evaluation of board's own performance, member's of board and of its
committees, however, reasonable progress is being made by the
Company to seek compliances by the end of next accounting year
ended June 30, 2019.

18 (b)

The level of materiality has not been defined and the reasonable
progress is being made by the Company to seek compliances by the
end of next accounting year ended June 30, 2019.

18 (c)

Chairman of Audit Committee is not an independent director and
reasonable progress is being made by the Company to seek
compliances by the end of next accounting year ended June 30,
2019.

Chairman of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee is not
an independent director and reasonable progress is being made by
the Company to seek compliances by the end of next accounting
year ended June 30, 2019.

No record is in place for particulars of the significant policies and
reasonable progress is being made by the Company to seek
compliances by the end of next accounting year ended June 30,
2019.

VI

18 (f)

The functions of the CFO and company secretary are handled by
same person and reasonable progress is being made by the
Company to seek compliances by the end of next accounting year
ended June 30, 2019.

Engagement

Chartered Accountants

Karachi.

Date: September 28, 2018
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of InternationalKnitwear Limited (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming
part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2018 and of
the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
ofPakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Following are the key audit matters:

(Refer note 19 to the financial statements)

The Company's revenuehas increased
significantly from Rs. 169.496 million for
June 30, 2017, to Rs. 393.230 million for
June 30, 2018.

We identified this area as key audit matter
because of the above reason.

S. No. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our
audit
1. Companies Act, 2017 We reviewed and understood the
(Refer note 3.2.1 to the financial statements) | requirements of the Fourth Schedule to
the Companies Act, 2017. Our audit
The fourth schedule to the Companies Act, | procedures included the following:
2017 became applicable to the Company for
the first time for the preparation of annual | -Considered the management’s process
financial statements. to identify the additional disclosures
required in the Company’s financial
As part of this transition to the | statements;
requirements, the management performed
a gap analysis to identify differences | -Obtained relevant underlying supports
between the previous and the current | for the additional disclosures and
Fourth Schedule and as a result certain | assessed their appropriateness for the
amendments relating to presentation and | sufficient audit evidence; and
disclosures were made in the Company’s
annexed financial statements. -Verified on test basis the supporting
evidence for the additional disclosure
In view of the various new disclosures | and ensured appropriateness of the
presented in the financial statements, we | disclosures made.
considered it as a key audit matter.
2. | Revenue Our audit procedures included the

following:

-Obtaining an understanding of the
process relating to recognition of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls;

-Comparing a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with sales orders, sales invoices, delivery
documents  and  other  relevant
underlying documents;

-Comparing a sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the year
end with the sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documentation to assess if
the related revenue was recorded in the
appropriate accounting period;

-Comparing the details of a sample of
journal entries posted to revenue
accounts during the year, which met
certain specific risk-based criteria, with
the relevant underlying documentation;
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

-Comparing a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year
to trade debtors recorded during the
year; and

-Confirming the amounts of unpaid
accounts receivable as of the end of the
reporting period directly from both local
and export trade debtors.

Stock in trade
(Refer note 9 to the financial statements)

Stock in trade includes:

- raw materials mainly comprising yarn,
fabric, lycra, accessories; and

- work-in-process mainly comprising grey
cloth and dyed yarn.

Due to the significance of inventory
balances and related estimations involved,
this is considered as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the
following:

-Attending physical inventory counts performed
by the Company;

-Obtaining and reviewed the inventory
count report of the management and
assessed its accuracy on a sample basis;

-Ensuring cut off particulars noted
during attendance at client's physical
count agree with accounting records;

-Ensuring correct classification
between raw materials and finished
goods;

-Ensuring that proper provision has
been made for slow moving, obsolete
and damaged inventory or items selling
below cost;

-Comparing inventory cost to sales
prices from subsequent sales invoices,
price lists, and customer contracts;

-Performing NRV test to ensure that
the inventory is valued at lower of cost
and NRV; and

-Verifying appropriateness of
allocation of raw materials, work-in-
process and finished goods.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

4. Short term investment Our audit procedures included the following:
(Refer note 8 to the financial statements)
-Selecting a sample of additions from the schedule and agreeing the
Short term investment is considered a key | amounts recorded and the date of acquisition with supporting
audit matter due to complex transactions documentation;

and its inherent risky nature.
Selecting a sample of disposals and agreeing with supporting
documentation and testing accuracy of the recorded gain or loss;

~Ensuring that the financial asset is initially measured at fair value adjusted
by financing fees and transactions costs (unless it is subsequently
measured at fair value);

-Ensuring that the asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost except
for equity securities quoted in an active market (measured at fair value};

-Ensuring that assets held for trading are reported at fair value with
changes recognized in net income;

-Ensuring assets available for sale are reported at fair value with changes
recognized in other comprehensive income. Securities with no quoted

marked price in an active market are reported at cost;

-Confirming  significant investments held by third parties, including
description and number of each investment held; and

~Ensuring that dividends have been praperly accrued.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
infuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

-Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

-Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

-Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

-Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause theCompany to cease to continue as a going concern.
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-Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of
the Company’s business; and

(d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980)
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Adnan Zaman.

Chartered Accouyntants

Karachi.
Date: September 28, 2018
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‘ BALANCE SHEET AS AT JUNE 30,2018

Restated
2018 2017
ASSETS Note Rupees Rupees
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 25,728,306 23,704,246
Long term deposits 7 1,500,000 1,500,000
Long term investments 8 23,011,500 35,182,729
50,239,806 60,386,975
Current Assets
Stock in trade 9 50,619,309 20,563,258
Short term investments 8 26,228,324 74,847,959
Trade debts - considered good 10 69,310,130 58,302,099
Loans and advances 11 2,387,520 2,106,145
Other receivables 12 11,273,510 5,698,375
Taxation - net 17 18,230,723 13,237,537
Cash and bank balances 13 1,661,962 336,491
179,711,478 175,091,864
TOTAL ASSETS 229,951,285 235,478,839
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 14 96,750,000 | | 96,750,000
Reserves 17,764,403 4,359,421
114,514,403 101,109,421
Unrealized gain on revaluation of investments-available for sale 19,958,702 25,701,369
134,473,105 126,810,790
Current Liabilities
Short term finance under mark-up arrangement 15 19,195,460 34,568,172
Payable against purchase of investment - 33,094,570
Creditors, accrued and other payables 16 74,966,895 39,689,484
Unclaimed dividend 36 1,315,823 1,315,823
95,478,179 108,668,049
Conti ies and C i 138 - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 229,951,285 235,478,839

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1% T e

NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chief Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer
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| PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Continuing Operations
Net sales
Cost of goods sold

Gross (loss) / profit
Administrative and selling expenses

Operating profit/ (loss)
Other income
Unrealized (loss) on revaluation of investments held for trading

Finance cost
Other charges

Profit/ (loss) before taxation from continuing operation
Taxation

Profit/ (loss) after taxation from continuing operation
Discontinued Operations

Profit from discontinued operations

Profit for the year

Earnings/ (loss) per share - basic and diluted
From continuing operations

From discontinued operation

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

19 393,230,773 169,496,272
20 (334,420,004) (173,163,942)
58,810,769 (3,667,670)

21 (17,001,302) (13,649,086)
41,809,467 (17,316,756)

22 (16,506,278) 25,058,664
(384,716) (1,733,285)

(16,890,994) 23,325,379

24,918,474 6,008,624

23 (6,296,250) (5,887,482)
24 (1,284,934) (131,782)
(7,581,184) (6,019,264)

17,337,290 (10,640)

17 (3,932,308) (1,647,280)
13,404,982 (1,657,920)

30 E 3,809,951
13,404,982 2,152,031

26 1.39 (0.19)
26 - 0.44

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

.

1%

NAEEM SHAFI
Chief Executive

JAVED KHAN
Director & Chief Financial Officer
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‘ STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Profit after taxation for the year 13,404,982 2,152,031
Reclassifiable to profit and loss account
Unrealized (loss) on remeasurement of investments (5,742,669) (12,342,359)
Total comprehensive income for the year 7,662,313 (10,190,328)

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1% il

NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chief Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer
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| STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Unrealized (loss) on

Issued, Subscribed 3 "
and Pakd up share: _TEValton ot Unappecpriated Total
. investments available profit
Capital
for sale
Rupees

Balance as at June 30, 2016 64,500,000 38,043,729 17,864,065 120,407,794
Transaction with owners:
10% cash dividend paid for the year ended June 30, 2016 - - (6,450,000) (6,450,000)
Share issue cost - - (889,311) (889,311)
Issued right shares 32,250,000 - - 32,250,000
Total comprehensive income:
Net profit/(loss) for the year ended June 30, 2017 before restatement - 2,152,032 2,152,032
Effect of restatement due to prior period error (refer note 5) e (8,317,364) (8,317,364)
Net (loss) for the year ended June 30, 2017 - restated - - (6,165,332) (6,165,332)
Unrealized (loss) on r ion of il -

available for sale . (12,342,359) - (12,342,359)
Balance as at June 30, 2017- restated 96,750,000 25,701,370 4,359,421 126,810,792
Total comprehensive income:
Net profit for the year ended June 30, 2018 - - 13,404,981 13,404,981
Unrealized (loss) on revaluation of investments - . (5,742,669) - (5,742,669)

available for sale
Balance as at June 30, 2018 96,750,000 19,958,702 17,764,403 134,473,105

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

.

N

NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chief Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer
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‘ STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustment for non cash items:

Depreciation

(Gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other income

Finance cost

Profit before changes in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stock in trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Short term finance under mark-up arrangement
Payable against purchase of investment
Creditors, accrued and other payables

Financial charges paid
Taxes paid

Net cash inflow from / (used in) operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceed from issuance of right shares-net

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Dividend paid

Net cash (used in) / inflow from financing activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure

Additons in investment

Disposal of investment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Long term deposits

Net cash (used in) investing activities

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

I

NAEEM SHAFI
Chief Executive
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Note

27

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
17,337,290 3,799,311
3,042,377 2,905,123
(132,600) (5,805,882)
(5,278,454) =
6,296,250 5,887,482
3,927,573 2,986,723
21,264,863 6,786,034
(30,056,051) 7,380,683
(11,008,031) (33,524,909)
(281,375) 1,208,946
(5,575,135) (4,593,853)
(46,920,592) (29,529,133)
(15,372,712) 19,539,660
(33,094,570) 24,413,799
35,277,411 4,198,149
(13,189,870) 48,151,608
(6,296,250) (5,887,482)
(8,925,495) (4,750,165)
(54,067,345) 14,770,862
- 31,360,689
= (2,324,445)
- (6,211,760
- 22,824,484
(5,851,087) (7,432,907)
(467,905,437) (6,313,831,042)
528,232,090 6,275,500,595
917,250 10,965,000
= 506,200
55,392,816 (34,292,154)
1,325,471 3,303,192
336,491 (2,966,701)
1,661,962 336,491

JAVED KHAN
Director & Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

International Knitwear Limited (hereinafter referred as the "Company" or "IKL") is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.
The geographical location and address of the head office and manufacturing plant of the Company is Plot # F-2A/L, SITE, Karachi, Pakistan.

We are leaders in creating, developing and manufacturing knitted and woven apparel products right from basic to highly fashioned garments. We are engaged
in the export of quality garments. We have established a name of credentials owing to the projected commitments, working speed and quality practices. Our
operating philosophy is to provide buyers with products that meet their specification, and are reliably delivered at a reasonable price in domestic and
international markets.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL POSITION AND PERFORMANCE

The financial position and performance of the Company was affected by the following events and transactions during the year:

(a)  Duetothe first ime application of financial reporting requirements under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act] including disclosure and
presentation requirements of the fourth schedule of the Act, some of the amounts reparted for the previous period have been
reclassified.

(b)  During the year both local and export sales have increased significantly in comparison to prior year. (Refer note 19)

BASIS OF PREPARATION

31

32
321

Statement of compliance

The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017, Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the FRS, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving 2 higher degree of judgment or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.3.

Standards, interpretations and amendments applicable to financial statements

New standards, interpretations and amendments

The fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) became applicable to the Company for the first time for the preparation of these financial
statements. The Act (including its fourth schedule) forms an integral part of the statutory financial reporting framework applicable to the Company
and amongst other, prescribes the nature and content of disclosures in relation to various elements of the financial statements.

The Act has also brought certain changes with regard to preparation and presentation of annual and interim financial statements of the Company.
These changes include change in nomenclature of primary financial statements. Further, the disclosure requirements contained i the Fourth
shedule to the Act have been revised, resulting in the:

- elimination of duplicative disclosures with the IFRS disclosure requirements; and incorporation of significant additional disclosures.
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‘ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

322

Standards, i ions and to approved ing standards that are not yet effective
The following standards, amendments, and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be
effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard of interpretation:

Effective date
Standard or interpretation (annual reporting periods

beginning on or after)

1AS-19 Employee Benefits (Amendments) January 01, 2019
1AS-28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments) January 01, 2019
1AS-40 Investment property (Amendments) January 01, 2018
IFRS-2 Share-based Payment (Amendments) January 01, 2018
IFRS-4 Insurance contracts (Amendments) January 01, 2018
IFRS-9 Financial Instruments July 01,2018

IFRS-15  Revenue from Contracts with Customers luly 01, 2018

IFRS-16 Leases January 01, 2019
IFRIC-22  Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration January 01, 2018
IFRIC-23  Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 01, 2019

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial
application.

Further, the following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which are yet to
be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purpose of their applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS-1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS-14  Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS-17 Insurance Contracts

The following interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) have been waived of by Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

IFRIC-4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

IFRIC-12  Service Concession Arrangements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below:

41
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Accounting Convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except investment available for sale and held for trading, which
are carried at fair value. In these financial statements, except for the amounts reflected in cash flow statements, all the transactions have been
accounted for on accrual basis.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is Company's functional currency. All the financial information presented in
Pakistani Rupee has been rounded off to nearest Rupee.
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43 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires the use of certain accounting
estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are as follows:
- Provision for impairment of trade debts;
- Provision for obsolete inventory;
- Taxation; and
- Valuation of work in process.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
44 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at
cost less impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is charged, from the month when the asset is available for use and ceased prior to the month of disposal, to profit and loss account
applying the straight-line method.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date,
Gains and losses arising on disposal of property, plant and equipment are taken to profit and loss account in the year of disposal.
Assets subject to finance lease
The Company accounts for fixed assets acquired under finance lease by recording the asset and the corresponding liability. These amounts are based
on discounting value of minimum lease payments. Financial charges are allocated to the income in the period.
Capital work in progress.
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost up to the balance sheet date and represents expenditure incurred on property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction. These expenditures are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and equipment as and when the
assets start operation.
45 Stock-in-Trade
(a)  Raw, Packing and other materials are valued at the lower of cost calculated on a first-in-first-out basis and net realizable value.

(b)  Workin Process is valued at material cost plus estimated conversion cost.

() Finished Goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). NRV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less cost necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale.

(d)  Stock-in-transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

46  Trade Debts
Trade debts are carried at nominal values less provisions for doubtful debts. Known bad debts, if any, are written off and provision is made against
debts considered doubtful, Provision for doubtful debts is based on management's assessment of customer's creditworthiness,

47 Staff Retirement Benefits
The Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund scheme for eligible employees. Equal contributions are made to the fund by
the Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33 % of basic salary.
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48 Compensated Ahsences
The Company has  policy to provide for compensated absences for all employees in accordance with the rules of the Company.

49 Taxation
Current
Provision for current taxation s based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in accordance with the final tax regime, of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. Income not covered under final tax regime is taxed under normal regime.
Deferred
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary difference between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amaunts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilites, using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date. However due to
application of final tax basis of taxation, deferred taxation would not arise.

410 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are directly attributable to the
construction of  quelifying asset in which case they are capitalized as part of the cost of that particular asset.

411 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is probable that outflow
of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 2 reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

412 Foreign Currencies Translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pak Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies s at the balance sheet date are expressed in rupees at rates of exchange prevailing on that date. Non manetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchenge rate at the date of the transactions. Exchange
gains and losses are included in income currently.

413 Revenue Recognition
Revenue from export sales is recognized upon transfer of risks and rewards which coincides with shipment of goods.
Revenue from knitting and local salesis recognized on completion of services and delivery of goods.
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive s established.
Bank profit and commission income is recognized on accrual basis.
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414 Financial Instruments
Financial Assets
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, available for sale and
held to maturity. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.
(b)  Loansand receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than twelve months after the balance sheet date, which are classified as
non-current assets. Loans and receivables comprise trade debts, loans, advances, deposits, other receivable and cash and bank balances
in the balance sheet.
{c)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investments within twelve months from
the balance sheet date. These comprise investment in shares.
(d)  Held to maturity
Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, where management has intention and ability to hold till
maturity are classified as held to maturity.
Al financial assets are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value.

Financial Liabilities

Allfinancial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Afinancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as 2 derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the profit and loss account.

Financial liabilities carried on the balance sheet include Medium term finances, short term finances under markup arrangements and trade and other
payables.
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415  Cashand Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances, current and deposit account balances with banks, and running finance facilities availed by the
Company, which form an integral part of Company's cash management and are included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
statement of cash flow.

416 Off- Setting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle either on a net basis, or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

417 Functional and Presentation Currency
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

418 Related Party Transactions

Al transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm's length at normal commercial rates on the
same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation modes, as admissible, except in extremely rare circumstances, where subject to
the approval of the Board of Directors, it s in the interest of the Company to do so.

419 Impairment of Assets
The carrying value of fixed assets is reviewed for impairment when event or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. If such indication exists and the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to the
recoverable amount.

420  Segments Reporting
Identification of segments
Export division
Local division
A new segment was classified [ast year, which was named "Local division".
Basis for allocation for revenue and expenses:
Revenue in respect of each segment is separately identifiable. Expenses against knitting charges, dyeing and other charges, embroidery charges,
stitching charges, clearing and forwarding charges, freight octroi and cartrage expenses are allocated on actual basis. However, depreciation and all
other general expenses are allocated on the following basis.

Segment Allocation
Basis of allocation Export Local
Depreciation on all assets 53.54% 16.46%

421  Earnings per share
The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period.
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5

PRIOR PERIOD ERROR

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company had erroneously not recorded an expenses of Rs. 8.3 million, and as a result the profit was overstated by

this amount.

The restatement has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the requirements of 1S 8 "Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates

and errors' and comparative figures have been restated.

The impact on prior year financial statements is as follows:

Asat June 30, 2017 |
As previously stated Effect of restatement | As restated |
Rupees
Impact on statement of financial position
Reserves 12,676,185 8317368 4359417
Payable against purchase of investment 24,777,202 8317368 33,094,570
Impact on statement of changes in equity
Net profit/{loss) for the year ended June 30, 2017 2,152,031 (8,317,364) (6,165,333)
2018 017
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Note Rupees Rupees
Operating assets 61 25,728,306 23,704 46
Capital work in progress:
-Building development charges 62
25,728,306 23,704,246
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611 Detail of Dispasal of Property, Plant and Equipment
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8. INVESTMENTS
Available for sale
Quoted Securities
Held for trading
Quoted Securities
Mutual funds

8.1 Available for sales - Quoted Securities

Number of Shares

2018 2017
64,728 54,394
100 1,000
3 1,000
500 5,500
500 1,000
503 4,603
1,000 5,000

= 1,000

The Searle Company Ltd.

Shell Pakistan Ltd.

Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited
Attock Petroleum Ltd.

Engro Corporation Ltd.

Pakistan Oilfields Ltd.

Pakistan Petroleum Ltd.

Engro fertilizer Ltd.

8.2 Held for trading - Quoted securities

Number of Shares

2018 2017

55,699 141,738
- 35,000

= 1,000

" 1,000
6,150 -
4,000 -
1,500 -

6,000 -

The Searle Company Ltd.

Golden Arrow Slected Stock Fund
National Refinery Limited

Feroz Sons

Abbot Laboraties Pakistan Ltd
AGP Limited

Sui Nothern Gas Pipe Line Limited
Pakistan State Oil Co. Ltd.

BMA Trade

8.3 Held for trading - Mutual Funds

Number of Units
2018 2017
7,381.60

40

7,381.60 CDC - Trustee AKD Opportunity Fund

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
8.1 23,011,500 35,182,728
8.2 25,616,759 74,141,170
83 611,566 706,789

49,239,824 110,030,687

21,975,156 27,848,640
31,609 575,370
= 82,640
294,995 3,445,365
156,930 325,910
337,910 2,108,864
214,500 740,700
- 55,240
23,011,500 35,182,728
18,909,812 72,567,021
- 461,650
725,990
- 386,509
4,212,750 -
355,160 -
150,330 -
1,909,860 -
78,847 -

25,616,759 74,141,170

611,566 706,789

611,566 706,789
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10.

103

STOCK IN TRADE
Raw material
Work-in-process
Finished goods

9.1. Finished goods
Finished stock
Scrap / Left over stock

TRADE DEBTS - CONSIDERED GOOD
Foreign - secured, considered good
Gain on translation of export debtors

Local - unsecured

Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for bad debts

10.1.

10.2.

of ision for i
Opening provision

Provision for the year
Written-off during the year

Age analysis of trade debts is as follows:

Not yet due

Past due

0to 3 months
3to 6 months

6 to 12 months

- Above 12 months

Note

9.1

101
102
of trade debts

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
15,863,455 5,039,739
28,494,071 12,584,465
6,261,783 2,939,054
50,619,309 20,563,258
2,364,068 877,894
3,897,715 2,061,160
6,261,783 2,939,054
35,357,835 51,783,849
1,159,450 832,624
36,517,285 52,616,473
32,792,845 5,685,626
1,286,162 2,255,364
34,079,007 7,940,990
(1,286,162) (2,255,364)
69,310,130 58,302,099
2,255,364 3,230,364
(969,202) (975,000)
1,286,162 2,255,364
67,050,918 53,608,165
537,815 95,748
1,721,397 4,598,186

In respect of outstanding trade debts against export sales, following particulars relate to exports made during the

year:

Foreign jurisdiction

Spain

Type of transaction

Letter of credit

36,517,285

52,616,473
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2018 2017
11.  LOANS AND ADVANCES Note Rupees Rupees

LOAN - unsecured, considered good
Loan to employees 11.1 877,500 1,131,000
AADVANCES - unsecured, considered good
Advance to contractor, employees and supplier 1,449,190 893,770
Prepayments 60,830 81,375

2,387,520 2,106,145

111 The unsecured loans to employees are granted in accordance with the terms of employment. Loans are recoverable in monthly
installments over a period ranging between 3 to 5 years and are interest free. The outstanding balance as at June 30, 2018 pertains to a
period between 1 - 2 years.

12, OTHER RECEIVABLES
Export rebate receivables 1,655,433 1,295,734
Research and development receivable 121 8,990,768 3,860,533
Other receivable 627,309 542,108

11,273,510

698,375

121 According to the notification number 1 (42-A) TID/17 - TR-Il issued on December 12th, 2017 for the shipments made from the July 1st,
2017 to June 30th, 2018, the Company is eligible to duty drawback on export sales of manufactured products at the rate of 7%.
Out of 7%, fifty percent (50%) of the rate of drawback is provided without further conditions. But the remaining fifty percent (50%) of the
rate of drawback is provided on achieving 10% increase in exports during the current year (2017-2018) as compared to the base year
(2016-2017).
However, as a matter of prudence, the Company has recorded the provision only on 50% of the rate, i.e. 3.5%, during the current year.
While in the year 2017, the Company was eligible for duty drawback of last four months (i.e. March-June), hence, 7% of export sales was
claimed accordingly.

13.  CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand - 27,103
With banks in:

- Treasures call accounts (deposit accounts) 13.1 3,127,432 1,707,975

- Currentaccounts 34,530 101,413

3,161,962 1,809,388

Security deposit 71 (1,500,000) {1,500,000)

1,661,962 336,491

13.1  Deposit accounts carry profit of 4.50% per annum (2017: 3.50% to 3.75% per annum)
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14 SHARE CAPITAL

2018 2017
Authorized share capital Note Rupees Rupees
Number of Shares
2018 2017
20,000,000 20,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10/- each 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Number of Shares
2018 2017
3,000,000 3,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid in cash. 30,000,000 30,000,000
225,000 225,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each issued as bonus shares 2,250,000 2,250,000
6,450,000 6,450,000 Right shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in cash 64,500,000 64,500,000

000

96,750,000 96,750,000

15, SHORT TERM FINANCE UNDER MARK-UP ARRANGEMENT
Running finance facility 151 5,995,460 568,172
Export refinance facility 152 13,200,000 34,000,000
19,195,460 34,568,172

151 Limit Rs. 6 million.

Secured against hypothecation charge over stocks and equitable mortgage over factory property at Plot # F-2A/L, SITE, Karachi
amounting to Rs.100 million (2017: Rs. 60 million) (with 50% margin), and lien over export documents and personal guarantees of
Directors of the Company. The rate of mark-up is equal to 3 Months KIBOR + 2.5% p.a (2017: 3 Months KIBOR + 2.5% p.a). The facility is
renewable and is valid till June 30, 2018,

152 Limit Rs. 35 million,

Secured against hypothecation charge over stocks and equitable mortgage over factory property at Plot # F-2A/L, SITE, Karachi
amounting to Rs.100 million (2017: Rs. 60 million) (with 50% margin), and lien over export documents and personal guarantees of
directors of the Company. The rate of mark-up is equal to 3 months' KIBOR + 1.0% p.a (2017: 3 Months KIBOR + 1.0% p.a). The facility is
renewable and is valid till June 30, 2018.
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2018 2017
16.  CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER PAYABLES Note Rupees Rupees
Creditors 58,766,471 26,229,936
Accrued expenses 7,869,139 5,541,802
Compensated absences payable 1,080,684 774,349
Other fund payable 16.1 315,692 243,798
Workers' profit participation fund 16.2 931,112 -
Workers' welfare fund 1,800,317 1,446,495
Advance from customers 340,075 340,000
Sales tax payable 1,367,873 39,479
Payable to Director 2,162,000 4,900,000
Others 333,533 173,625
74,966,895 39,689,484
16.1  Other Fund Payable
Provident fund 311,830 238,636
EOBI payable 3,862 5,162
315,692 243,798
16.2  Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Opening balance = ” 694,127
Provision for the year 931,112 =
931,112 694,127
Less: Payments made during the year - (694,127)
931,112 E
17.  TAXATION
Advance tax
Less: Provision for tax 22,163,031 14,884,817
Current year (3,932,308) (1,647,280)
Prior year = E
(3,932,308) (1,647,280)

18,230,723 13,237,537

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

17.1.
The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and applicable tax rate has not been presented in these financial
statements as the total income of the Company attracts minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
and its export sales fall under final tax regime.

18. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Commitments
Commitments under letters of credit as at June 30, 2018 amounted to Rs. 36,517,285 (2017: Rs. 52,616,473).
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NET SALES.

Expart
Sales lacal

Sales discount
Export rebates
Export R&D

R & D Commission

181 Sales local
Local
Others

Sales tax Local
Sales tax others

EXPORT LOCAL TOTAL
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Note Rupees
202,070,981 118,153,684 - - 202,070,981 118,153,684
191 - - 183,070,393 46,099,278 183,070,393 46,099,278
“ (362,620) (362,620) -
1,515,532 1,282,777 1,515,532 1,382,777
7,072,483 3,860,533 7,072,483 3,860,533
(135,956) - = £ (135,956) -
210,523,000 123,396,004 182,707,773 46,099,278 393,230,773 169,496,272
- 5 189,610,299 43,657,957 189,610,209 43,657,957
1811 = = 4,431,843 4,657,617 2,434,843 4,657,617
B - 194,085,142 8,315,574 184,045,142 38,315,574
. . ” 10,720,190 1,596,119 ” 10,720,190 1,996,115
. - 254,559 220177 254,559 220,177
E E 10,974,749 221629
- B 183,070,353 36099778 ___ 183070303 46,009778

18.1.10thers include scrap sales amounting to Rs. 1,741,808 (2017: Rs. 772983

COST OF GOODS SOLD

Raw and packing material consumed
Opening stock

Purchases

Closing stock

Salaries, allowances and benefits
Provident fund contribution
Kitting charges

Dyeing and other charges
Embroidery/ Printing charges
titching charges

Postage & telegrams
Repairs and mainter

Staff welfare and medical expenses
Motor vehicle and conveyance
Insurance

Depreciation

Clearing and forwarding

Freight, octroi and cartage

Export Development Charges
Factory Compliance expenses
Marketing expenses

Travelling expenses

Others

Workein-process
Opening stack
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods

Opening stock

Closing stock

COST OF GOODS SOLD.

3,621,684 3,104,004 1,418,055 2,421,910 5,039,738 5,526,004
100,972,870 52,623,409 87,631,890 20,604,474 188,604,760 73,227,883
8,492,779) (2,621,684) (7,370,676) 1,418,055 (15,863,455 (5,039,739)
96,101,775 52,105,820 81,679,269 21,608,329 177,781,043 73,714,149
13511912 12162312 11,726,658 4,762,102 25,238,570 16,924,414
367,856 380,307 319,253 148,908 687,1¢ 529,215
2,495,545 1,772,968 2,165,823 694,198 4,661,368 2,467,166
25,683,409 16,163,785 22,290,003 6,328,862 47,973,412 22,492,647
7,374,299 3,741,293 6,399,975 1,464,888 13,774,274 5,206,181
33,056,755 21,581,165 28,689,150 8,450,014 61,745,905 30,031,179
1,546,328 1,849,299 1,342,021 724,085 2,888,348 2,573,384
188,503 196,592 163,598 76975 352,101 273,567
167,442 257,503 145319 100,824 312,761 358,328
911,410 685,773 790,099 268,512 1,702,418 954,285
45,526 6,87 39511 2,60: 85,037 9,571
557,930 663,993 484,214 259,983 1,042,144 923,976
156,569 189,801 135,882 74316 292,451 264,117
6.1.2 987,632 3¢ 857,142 312,608 1,844,774 1,111,001
1,509,877 1,420,297 - - 1,509,877 1,420,207
4,134,456 3,016,495 3,588,193 1,181,096 7,722,649 4,197,591
507,239 184,958 507,3: 184,958
269,628 302,998 234,003 118,638 503,631 421,636
27,451 65,757 23,824 25,763 51,275 91,560
355,686 683,993 308,691 267,814 664,377 951,807
1,237,488 839,711 1,073,986 328,785 2,311,474 1,168,496
95,093,050 66,964,312 80,778,245 25,591,064 175,871,295 92,555,375
(1,596,469 73,719 ” 14,180,934 18,999,143 ” 12,584,465 ‘ 19,072,862
(4,614,817) 1,596,469 (23,879,254)] (14,180,934)} (28,494,071 (12,584,465)
(6.211,287) 1,670,188 15,698,320 4,818,209 (15,909,606) 6,488,397
184,983,538 120,740,320 152,759,194 52,017,602 337,742,732 172,757,921
212,079 1879012 826,576 1,466,063 2,939,054 3,345,075
(3.352,355) (2,112,079) (2,909,428) 826,976} (6,:261,783] (2,939,054)
(1,240,277) (233,067} (2,082,452) 633,087 (3,322,729) 406,021
183,743,262 120,507,253 150,676,742 52,656,689 333,420,008 173,163,942
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21 ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and benefits
Provident fund contribution
Communication

Postage & telegrams

Staff welfare and medical expenses
Motor vehicle and conveyance
Repair and maintenance

Legal and professional charges
Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation

Printing and stationery
Advertisement and publicity
Fee, subscription and periodicals
Rent, rate and taxes

Insurance.

Others.

211
612

211 Auditors' Remuneration
Annual audit

Half yearly review

Out of pocket expenses.

Sales tax on audit and review fee

OTHER INCOME

Income From Financial Assets
Profit an bank accounts

Dividend income

Exchange gain - net

Other income

Galin on disposal of investment net
Reversal of provision against doubtful
debts

Gain on translation of foreign
currency debtors

Income From Non-Financial Assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

221

221 (Loss) on disposal of investment
Investments available for sale
Investments held for trading
-Quoted securities

“Mutual funds

46

EXPORT Il Il TOTAL
2018 2017 Il 2018 I 2017 ] 2018 2017
6121,709 6681823 5312882 2616239 11,434,591 9,298,062
276,587 300,003 240,044 117,465 516,631 417,468
208963 208440 181,353 81,614 390316 290,054
2,655 3593 2,305 1,407 4,960 5,000
78,755 65,201 68,349 25529 147,104 90,730
507,627 529,811 440,558 207,445 948,185 737,256
54,222 40,822 47,058 15,984 101,280 56,806
218274 27351 189,435 89,018 407,709 316,369
179,402 25541 155,698 88,309 335,100 313,850
641,158 757,039 556,445 296,416 1,197,603 1,053,455
137,776 126,523 119,573 49,540 257,349 176,063
46,018 100,356 39,937 35,294 85,955 139,650
388,046 358,203 336,776 140,253 724,822 498,456
64,860 = 56,290 = 121,150 .
50,940 62,901 44,210 24,628 95,150 87,529
124,953 120,972 108,444 47,366 233,397 168,338
9,101,946 9,808,578 7,899,356 3,840,508 17,001,302 13,649,086
2018 2017
Rupees. Rupees.
187,500 187,500
70,000 70,000
44,500 32,000
20,600 20,600
322,600 310,100
EXPORT I LOCAL 1 TOTAL
2018 2017 Il 2018 I 2017 1 2018 2017
76,644 87,763 66,517 34,363 143,161 122,126
780632 1,785,571 677,491 699,133 1,458,123 2,484,704
2,492,720 ” = o 2,492,720 3
- 267,508 - 104,740 - 372,243
(11,733,828) 14,016,331 (10,183,503) 5,488,035 (21,917,332) 19,504,367
u 25,000 975,000 25,000 975,000
1,159,450 832,624 e e 1,159,450 832,624
70,990 551,617 61,610 215,983 132,600 767,600
(7,153,393} 17,541,409 9,352,884 7,517,255 (16,506,278) 25,058,664
- 11,328,208
(21,822,108, 8,789,039
(95,223) (612,880)
(21,917,332) 8,176,159
21,917,332) 19,504,367
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‘ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 ‘

23, FINANCE COST EXPORT LOCAL TOTAL
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Rup:
Mark-up on export refinance 567,532 315,544 492,547 123,550 1,060,079 439,095
Mark-up on running finance 274634 327335 238,348 128,167 512,981 455,502
Bank charges on export remittances 2495915 1,025,778 - - 2,495,915 1,025,778
Bank charges 534,220 365,509 63,637 43113 997,857 508,622
Mark-up on liablity against asset subject to
finance lease 317 17,352 - 61670
Exchange (loss)-net - 67,845 - - - 67,845
Brokerage and other charges 273573 334079 237,428 130,807 511,001 464,886
Mark-up on MTS shares 277,294 2,058,204 240,656 805,881 517,950 2,864,084
Other markup - - 200,467 - 200,467 -
2,823,168 4,538,611 1,873,082 1,308,871 6,296,250 5,887,482
24, OTHER CHARGES
Workers' profit participation fund 498,487 - 432,625 - 931,112 -
Workers' welfare fund 189,425 95,940 164,397 35802 353822 131,782
687,912 95,540 557,022 35,842 1,284,934 131,782

25. SEGMENT INFORMATION
A segment s a distinguishable component of the company that is engaged in business actvities from which the Company earns revenues and incur expenses and its results are
regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker to make decision about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. Further,
discrete financial information is available for each segment.

d products prod

Based on internal d and sold, the Company is organized into the following two operating segments:

- Export
- Local

Management monitors the operating results of above mentioned segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources to be llocated and of assessing

performance.

Segment revenue and segment result for the year are as follows:

EXPORT Il LOCAL 1l TOTAL |
2018 2017 1 2018 2017 1 2018 2017
Net Sales 210,523,000 123,396,994 182,707,773 46,099,278 393,230,773 169,496,272
Cost of goods sold (183743262)  (120507.253)  (150,676,742) (52,656,689) (334,420,000) (173,163,942)
Gross profit 26,779,738 2,889,741 32,031,031 (6,557,411) 58,810,769 (3,667,670)
Administrative and selling expenses (9,101,946 (9808578 (7,899356) (3.840,508) (17,001,302) 13,649,086)
Segment results 17,677,79% (6.918837) 24,131,675 (10,397,919) 41,809,467 (17,316,756)
Other income (7,153393) 17,541,409 (9,352,884) 7,517,255 (16,506,278) 25,058,664
Unrealized gain / (loss) on revaluation (205,964) (1,261,831) (178,752) (471,454) (384,716) (1,733,285)
of investments held for trading
Finance cost (4423,168) (4,538,611) (1,873,082) (1,348871) (6,296,250} (5,887,482)
Other charges (687912) (95,940) (597,022) (35,842) (1,28,934) (131,782)
Profit before taxation from
contining operation 5,207,355 4,726,190 12,129,938 14,736,830 17,337,290 (10,640)
Taxation
- Current 12,105,230] 11,199,25?)" t1,sz7,o7—x)| (443.0147” (3,932,308 (1,647,280)
- Prior - - - - -
{2,105,230) (1,199,256} (1,827,078) {448,024) (3,932,308} (1,647,280)
Profit after taxation from continuing
operation 3,102,125 3,526,934 10,302,857 (5,184,854) 13,404,982 (1,657,920
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2018 2017
26. EARNINGS/ (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED Note Rupees Rupees
261 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
From continuing operations
Profit after taxation 13,404,982 (1,657,920)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 9,675,000 8721270
Eamings per share 0.19)
From discontinued operation
Profit / (loss) for the year - 3,809,951
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 9,675,000 8721270
Eamings per share 044
262 DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
There s no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, since there are no convertible instruments in issue as at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 which
would have any effect on the earnings per share.
27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 3 1,661,962 336,491
Running finance facility 151 (5,995,460) (568,172)
28, REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES
The aggregate amount charged in the accounts for remuneration, including a benefits to the Chief executive, Director and Executives of the Company are as folows:
2018 2017
Directors || Chief Executive |[ ~ Executives Directors || Chief Executive || Executives
Rupees -
Basic salary 1,033,548 3,125,806 2,352,903 936,774 2,593,548 2971702
Alowances 568,452 1,719,194 1,290,097 515226 1426452 1637758
Company's contribution to provident fund 86,129 260484 196,075 78065 26,129 28,125
Medical expenses 146242 58101 12226 5190 85,540 5120
Fees p - i - . -
Managerial remuneration . . .
Commission or bonus 46242 32,581 203,226
Reimbursable expenses with nature of a perauisite or benefit - - - - :
Other perquisites and benefits in cash o in kind stating their 3 : 3 2 = -
nature and, where
1,780,613 486,166 4158527 1,535,255 4,321,669 4,868,765
Number of person(s) 1 1 4 1 1 4
281 Asum of Rs, 65,000 (2017: Rs. 39,000) was peid being fee for attending the Board of Directors' meeting.
282 Chief executive and Other Executives are provided with free use of Company maintained cars. They are also entitled for medical faciity to the extent of reimbursement of
actual expenditure and other benefits in accordance with their terms of employment
283 Executive loyee other than Chief d Director whose basic alary exceeds five hundred thousand rupees in the financial year.
29, DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In December 2012, the Company decided to discontinue its dyeing segment. Hawever, the criteria for classifying the assets as held for sale under IFRS 5 could not be met by the
Company, and hence the assets were not classified as held for sle.
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‘ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

30.

(LOSS) / PROFIT FROM DISCOUNTINUED OPERATIONS

2018 2017

Note Rupees Rupees
Net Sales #
Costof oods sold 301 - (128331
Gross loss) T T uman
Other income: 302 = 5,038,282
Profit / {loss) before taxation 4 3,809,951
Taxation &
Loss} / profitfrom discontinued operation T

301 COST OF GOODS SOLD
Salaries, allowances and benefits
Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation 612
COST OF GOODS SOLD
302 OTHER INCOME
Income From Non-Financial Assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 611 - 5038282
T smam
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at commercial terms and conditions. The related parties comprise staff retirement
funds, directors and key ies , other than those discl Isewh he statements, are follows:
Balances:
Provident Fund - outstanding balance 311,830 28636
Transactions:
Contribution to staff retirement benefit plans 1,203,740 946,663
Key management personnel’s remuneratian and other benefits ] 5939140 6404020
Un-audited Audited
PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES 2018 2017
i based on latest un-audited financi: of fund:
Size of the fund - total assets 5305427 4751678
Percentage of investment made 5040% 4533%
Fair value of investments 2674037 2153988
The cost of above investments amounted 3,000,000 2,500,000
The breakup of fair value of investment is: 2018 2007 2018 2017
Percentage  Percentage Rupees Rupees
CDC-Trustee AKD Opportunity Fund 2003% 2874% 535,667 619,02
AKD Islamic Income Fund 37.43% 0.00% 1,000,847 -

Investment in Shares.

137523

34,916

2,674,037 2,153,988
The investments out of provident fund have not been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 227 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated
for this purpose.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial risk management objective and policies
The Board of Directors of the Company have overallresponsibilty for the establishment and oversight of Company' isk management framework. The Board is als responsile for
developing and moritoring the Company's isk management poliies.
The Company's actvities expose it to a variety ofliquidity isk, credit ik, financial risk, and market iskfincuding currency risk, inerest rate risk and price risk). Company’s overals

i h i ks to mirimize potential fects on th performance
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334 Liquidity Risk

Liquidty isk s the rsk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial lizblices. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining suffcient cash and cash

equivalnts.
{10 alance sheet assetsan
fecive rateofnterst | Maturty uptoone | Maturtyater |l aturityuptoone Matutyatier | Total
% year one year year ane year
Financal asets:
Longterm deposts 3 3 1500000 1500000 1,500,000
Long term nestments ’ . . w2s3 20150 92393 4823952
Trade debts . > . . 69310130 E £9310,130 @010
Other receivabes » - s . 11273500 = 11273500 17510
Cash and bank blances s 3749 . 37432 34,530 : 34530 3,161,962
ERe) : 3174 10634645 24511500 13135799 4885427

Financa abiltes:
Libilty sganst asets 1year KIBOR 2.5% . .
subjectto financelease
Shorttem finance under 3 Months KIBOR +25% &
makup arrngement Soprate i 19,195,460 - 16,195,460 19,195460
Creditors,sccrued and other payabes s » 1112 035783 03578 74,966,855

w1657 g W11 74035783 B o038 916235
Sensitiity gap 16,995,140 z 16,999,100 g0 aasusn G 0

4 3million.

i) On balance sheet assets and liabiltes:

Effective rate of interest  Maturity upto one| Maturity after Subtotal || Maturity up to one | Maturity after Sub total Total
% year one year year one year
Financial assets:
Long term deposits 5 % 5 % a 1,500,000 1500000 1,500,000
Long term investments % - . 74,847,959 35,182,728 110,030,687 110,030,687
Trade debts - - - - 58,302,099 - 58,302,099 58,302,099
Other receivabies
. 5 - 5658896 565889 5,658,896
Cash and bank balances 375% 1,707,975 # 1,707,975 128516 = 128516 1,836,491
1,707,975 & 1,707,975 138,937,470 36,682,728 175,620,198 177,328,173
Financial liabilities:
Medium term finance 1year KIBOR+ 2.5% - - . - - .
Short term inance under 3 Months KBOR +2.5% &
e a
arkup arfangement S8 rate +15 568,172 @ 568,172 . Ws68172
Creditors, accrued and other payables w £ = 39,689,484 39,689,484 39,689,484
34,568,172 5 34,568,172 39,689,484 39,689,484 74,257,656
Sensitivity gap (32,860,197) 3 2,860,197} 99,247,986 36,682,728 135,930,714 103,070,517
2mil
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33.2  Credit Risk

Credit r

isk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party

by failing to discharge an obligation. The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade debts and
balances at banks. Local credit sales are essentially to Khaadi. Receivable from export sales are secured against

letter of credit. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because counter parties are banks with reasonably high

credit ratings.

i)

33.3  Market
(i)

(ii)

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the date of reporting is as follows:

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Financial assets:
Trade debts 69,310,130 58,302,099
Other receivables 11,273,510 5,658,896

80,583,640 63,960,995
As on June 30, 2017, trade debts of Rs. 69,310,130 (2017: 58,302,099) were past due but not impaired.
Risk
Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial
transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

Financial assets include Rs. 35,357,835 (2017 : Rs. 51,783,849) which are subject to currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that are fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has no long term interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities whose fair value or future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

However, Company do possess short term interest bearing financial liabilities which includes Rs. 19,195,460
(2017: Rs. 34,568,172) which are subject to interest rate risk. Applicable interest rate for financial
instruments have been indicated in respective notes.

Other price risk

Price risk represent the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk,
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or
factors affecting all similar financial instrument traded in the market.
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33.4 Capital Risk Management

34,

35.

52

The objective of the Company when managing capital, i.e., its shareholders' equity is to safeguard its ability
to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders; and to maintain a strongcapital base to support the sustained development of its
businesses.

The capital structure of the Company is equity based. It has financed all its projects and business expansion
through equity financing and never resorted on debt financing. Company has availed short-term borrowing
for working capital purposes only.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.The carrying values of all financial assets
and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the
fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

 Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

* Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

As at June 30, 2018, the Company has no financial instruments that falls into any of the above category

PRODUCTION CAPACITY 2018 2017

Installed capacity (Pcs.) 1,200,000 660,000

Actual production (Pcs.) 995,601 433,353

It is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in the textile industry since it fluctuates widely depending
on various factors such as count of yarn spun, raw material used, etc.
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36. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2018 2017

Number of employees as on the date of financial statements:

- Factory employees 127 72
- Other employees 104 76
Total 231 148

Average number of employees during the year:

- Factory employees 145 80
- Other employees 94 75
Total 239 155

37. CORRESPONDENCE FIGURES

Prior year's figures have been reclassified for the purpose of better presentantion and comparision. Significant
changes made during the year are as follows:

| Reclassification from | Reclassification to | Amount in Rs. |
Creditors, accrued & other liabilities Current Liabilities
Unclaimed dividend Unclaimed dividend 1,315,823

38. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the Company and authorized for issue on
September 28 2018.

39. FIGURES
39.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest of rupees.

39.2 Some of the previous year figures have been reclassified and re-arranged to facilitate better presentation in
the current year.

W

NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chief Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer
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| PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

No. Of Shareholders Shareholdings'Slab Total Shares Held
251 1 to 100 7,151
221 101 to 500 59,001
632 501 to 1000 357,136
92 1001 to 5000 213,442
27 5001 to 10000 205,044
7 10001 to 15000 83,735
6 15001 to 20000 100,845
11 20001 to 25000 250,278
2 25001 to 30000 56,530
3 35001 to 40000 110,626
5 40001 to 45000 216,500
2 45001 to 50000 95,000
2 50001 to 55000 106,250
1 60001 to 65000 63,531
2 70001 to 75000 145,132
1 80001 to 85000 81,000
1 90001 to 95000 92,000
1 100001 to 105000 100,382
2 105001 to 110000 217,599
1 110001 to 115000 113,686
1 130001 to 135000 132,225
1 155001 to 160000 158,500
1 160001 to 165000 162,780
1 235001 to 240000 238,000
1 300001 to 305000 300,466
1 365001 to 370000 368,571
1 425001 to 430000 430,000
1 610001 to 615000 611,541
1 665001 to 670000 669,792
1 820001 to 825000 823,653
1 895001 to 900000 896,461
1 2205001 to 2210000 2,208,143
1282 9,675,000
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

C ies of Shareholders Shareholders  Shares Held  Percentage
Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 5 844,044 8.72
ARSHAD AHMED 1 1,500 0.02
JAVED AKHTAR MALIK 1 750 0.01
JAVED KHAN 2 8,089 0.08
MOHAMMAD SAJID HUSSAIN 1 1,500 0.02
MUHAMMAD SHAFI 1 16,125 0.17
WASEEM SHAFI 2 43,233 0.45
BUSHRA SHAFI 1 3,870 0.04
HUMAIRA SHAFI 3 1,068,742 11.05
NOOR SHAFI 1 16,125 0.17
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties - -
Executives 5 = =
Public Sector Companies and Corporations 1 67 0.00
Banks, devel finance instituti banking finance
i takaful, modarabas and pension funds 4 1,231,046 12.72
Mutual Funds = = =
General Public
a. Local 1253 6,398,240 66.13
Foreign Investor = = -
OTHERS 6 41,669 0.43
Totals 1282 9,675,000 100.00
Share holders holding 5% or more Shares Held _ Percentage
NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 844,044 8.72
HUMAIRA SHAFI 1,068,742 11.05
RASHID ABDULLA 2,208,143 22.82
FIRST UDL MODARABA 823,653 851
KHALID MALIK 698,535 7.22
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[s:No. Folio # Name of Number of shares _Percentage |
Directors and their spouse(s} and minar children
! 01826-52175 NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 5,000 0.09
2 03277-44659 NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 162,780 188
3 520 NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 1,722 0.02
4 3041 NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 750 0.01
5 2 NAEEM SHAFI 669,792 6.92
6 2983 ARSHAD AHMED 1,500 0.02
7 3040 JAVED AKHTAR MALIK 750 0.01
8 10629-132285  JAVED KHAN 6,589 0.07
9 2982 JAVED KHAN 1,500 0.02
10 2981 MOHAMMAD SAJID HUSSAIN 1,500 0.02
1 2911 MUHAMMAD SHAFI 16,125 0.17
12 i WASEEM SHAFI 39,468 0.41
13 3025 'WASEEM SHAF! 3,765 0.04
14 20 BUSHRA SHAF| 3,870 0.04
15 01826-12062 HUMAIRA SHAFI 108,750 112
16 19 HUMAIRA SHAFI 896,461 9.27
17 2910 HUMAIRA SHAF! 63,531 0.66
18 2913 NOOR SHAF| 16,125 017
18 2,003,978 20.71
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties.
o . -
Executive
NIL
Public sector companies and corporations
¥ 03889-28 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 67 0.00
1 67 0.00
Banks, ies, insurance companies, takaful, darab: d pension funds
1 02139-29 PREMIER INSURANCE LIMITED 158,500 1.64
2 0211321 FIRST EQUITY MODARABA 238,000 2.46
3 03277-1651 FIRST UDL MODARABA 823,653 851
4 03277-78335 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND 10,893 0.11
4 1,231,046 12.72
Mutual Funds
NIL
Foreign Investor
NIL
Others
1 03277-82127 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BENEVOLENT FUND TRUST 382 0.00
2 02113-3843 APEX FINANCIAL SERVICES (PVT.} LIMITED 13,000 0.13
3 05728-24 STOCK STREET (PRIVATE) LIMITED 537 0.01
4 02113-3611 First UDL Modaraba Staff Provident Fund 1,500 0.02
5 03277-89483 TRUSTEES OF FIRST UDL MODARABA STAFF PROVIDENT FUND 18,250 0.19
6 02113-3850 CAPITAL FINANCIAL SERVICES (PVT.) LIMITED 8,000 0.08
6 41,669 043
General Public Local 1253 6,398,240 66.13
Iotal 1282 9,675,000 100.00
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Consent Required

For Annual Reports through e-mail

Dear Shareholder(s)

The securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its Notification (SRO 787(1) 2014) dated 8
September 2014 has allowed the circulation of Company’s annual balance sheet and profit and loss account,
auditor’s report and directors’ report etc. (Audited Annual Financial Statements) to shareholders along with

notice of Annual General Meeting (AGM) through e-mail.

Therefore, if you wish to receive company’s (Audited Annual Financial Statements) along with notice of
(AGM) via - email, you are requested to provide this letter duly filled and signed to us or our Share Registrar

at their below address:

E — MAIL ADDRESS:

CNIC NUMBER:

FOLIO / CDS ACCOUNT #

M/s Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
Share Registrar Department

CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S,

Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.

Telephone (Toll Free) 0800-23275 / Fax: (92-21) 34326053
Email: info@cdcpak.com / Website: www.cdcpakistan.com

Yours sincerely
For International Knitwear Limited

G

Javed Khan

Company Secretary

SIGNATURE OF SHAREHOLDER







E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

To:

Subject: Banka account detail for payment of Dividend through electronic mode.

Dear Sir,

1, Mr./Mrs./Ms,

$/0,/D/0,W/0,

hereby authorize International Knitwear Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if any, in the

below mentioned bank account.

Name of the Shareholder

Folio No./CDC Participants ID A/C No.

CNIC No. **

Passport No. (in case of foreign Shareholder)***

Land Line Phone Number

Cell Number

Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank 's Name

Branch Name and Address

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and that | will intimate the changes in the
above mentioned information to the Company and the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur.

Signature of the Shareholder

Notes:

Th having physical shares

10 2ddress the C on th

The Company Secretary

International Knitwear Limited

F2-A/LSITE

Karachi.

and shareholders having their accounts with Central Depository Company (CDC) have

below:

**+please attach attested photocopy of the CNIC.
**+Please attach attested photocopy of the Passport.

to relevant Member Stock Exch:
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FORM OF PROXY
28th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I/We — son/daughter/wife/husband of , Shareholder of

International Knitwear Limited, holding________ ordinary shares hereby appoint
who is my. [state relationship (if any) with the proxy; required by Government

regulations] and the son / daughter / wife / husband of , (holding

ordinary shares in the Company under FolioNo. ) [required by Government] as my
/ our proxy, to attend and vote for me /us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of

the Company to be held on October 27th, 2018 and / or any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2018.
Folio CDC Participant CDC Account/ No. of
No. ID No. Sub-Account No. Shares held
Signature over
Revenue Stamp
Witness 1 ‘Witness 2
Signature Si,
Name Name
CNIC No, CNIC No
Address Address

Notes: 1. The proxy must be a member of the Company.

2. The signature must tally with the specimen signature/s registered with the company.

3.  Ifaproxyis granted by a member who has deposited his/her shares inCentral
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, the proxy must be accompanied with
participant’s ID number and CDC account/sub-account number along with attasted
photocopies of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or the Passport of the
beneficial owner. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual
documents required for such purpose.

4. Theinstrument of Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the R
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.
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International Knitwear Limited
F-2A/L, $.1.T.E., Karachi-75730 Pakistan
Phones: 32571463, 32574302-04
Fox: (021) 325664414
Web : www.intemationalknitwear.com




